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Organic Coatings Limited 

Notice 

Notice is hereby given that the 607 Annual General Meeting of Organic Coatings Limited will be held on Tuesday, the 

30" September, 2025 at 3.00 p.m. through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") to transact 

the following businesses: 

Ordinary Business: 

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31"March, 2025 

and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors' thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors' thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby 

considered and adapted”. 

To appoint Mr. Abhay R. Shah (DIN:00016497) who retires by rotation as a Director and in this regard, pass the 

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Abhay R. Shah 

(DIN:00016497) who retires by rotation at this meeting be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the company, 

liable to retire by rotation”. 

Special Business: 

3. To appoint Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN:07282015) as an Additional Director and in this regard to 

consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, Mr. 

Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN: 07282015) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the 

Board of Directors on 11th August, 2025 and whose term expires at this Annual General Meeting and in respect of 

whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member 

proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable fo 

retire by rotation". 

To consider appointment of Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN; 07282015) as a Wholetime Director & Chief 

Operating Officer (COQ) and in this regard to consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and all other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 and Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

DisclosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 

time being in force), the approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment and payment of 

remuneration to Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN:07282015) as a Wholetime Director & COQ of the Company 

for a remuneration and perquisites as under: 

Particulars Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (p.m.) in Rs. 

Basic 50000.00 

HRA 50000.00 

CanteenAllowance 15000.00 

Travelling Allowance 15000.00 

Children & Education Allowance 10000.00 

Medical Allowance 20000.00 

Telephone Allowance 15000 .00 

Books & Periodical 2848.00 

TOTAL 177848.00 
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The Board of Directors will have discretion to consider on merit basis, increment taking into account the company's 

performance which shall be within the overall limits prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, 

(Excluding perquisites namely Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund, gratuity and 

encashment of leave salary at the end of tenure ) as amended. 

Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy, Wholetime Director & COOQ shall be entitled for the following perquisites and 

benefits: 

1) 

2) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

LTA: The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be entitled to reimbursement of actual leave travel 
expenses once in a year for himself and his family to any destination in India by air/rail/road, however which 
shall not exceed one month's basic salary plus HRA. 

Provident Fund: The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COQ shall be entitled to company’s contribution towards 

provident fund as per the rules of the Company. 

Gratuity: The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be entitled to payment of gratuity wherever applicable 

as per the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and amended from time Lo time as per the rules of the company. 

Leave Encashment: The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be entitled for leave encashment of 

accumulated leave, standing to his credit encashable at the end of his tenure, which shall not lapse during his 

tenure. 

The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending the meetings of 
the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee or committees thereof. 

The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall not so long as he funclions as such, become interested or 

otherwise concerned directly or through his wife/minor children in any selling agency of the Company in future 

without the prior approval of the appropriate authority under the Companies Act, 2013. 

The above remuneration is well within the limits specified in Section 198 and Schedule V to the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as 

may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution”. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

SudhirR. Shah 

Company Secretary 
& Compliance Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12" August, 2025 

Registered Office : 

UnitNo. 405, Atlanta Estate Premises Co-op. Soc. Ltd., 
Vitth Bhatti, Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai - 400 063. 
Email ID: organiccoatingsitd@organiccoatingsltd.com 
CIN : L24220MH1965PLC013187 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Notice 

NOTES: 

1 

10. 

11. 

In compliance with the provisions of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 
19,09.2024 and 09/2023 dated 25/09/2023 and 10/2022 and 11/2022 both dated 28/12/2022 and 02/2022 dated 5th 
May, 2022 and Securities and Exchange Board of India {"SEBI") Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 

dated 15th January, 2021 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020, the 
Company will be conducting this Annual General Meeting ("AGM" or "Meeting") through Video Conferencing/Other 

Audio Visual Means ("VC"/"OAVM"). 

MUFG Intime India Pvi. Ltd., Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company shall be providing facility for voting through 
remote e-voting, for participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. The procedure 

for participating in the meeting through VC/OAVMis explained at Note No. 19 below. 

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing has to be a pre-requisite. Pursuant to 

the above mentioned MCA Circulars, physical attendance of the Members is not required at the AGM and 
attendance of the Members through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 

section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

The relevant details pursuant to regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 

on general meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of directors seeking re- 

appointment at this AGM is annexed. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General 

Meeting (the meeting) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll to vote instead of his/her behalf and 

the proxy need not be a member of the company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA circulars through 

VC/OAVM, physical attendance of members have been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 
proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence, the proxy form and attendance slip are not 

annexed to this notice. 

Institutional / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF / JPEG format) of its board or governing body resolution /authorization etc. authorizing its representatives to 

attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said resolutions / 

authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer through its registered email fcs.dhanraj@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to organiccoatingsitd@organiccoatingsitd.com. 

In compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations”) read with above mentioned MCA and SEBI 

Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM. 

In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meelings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India ("ICSI") read with Clarification/Guidance on applicability of Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 dated 15th April, 

2020 issued by the ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of 

the Company which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the 
Route Map is not annexed to this Notice. 

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 

Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under 

section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

M/s. Soman Uday & Co, Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company at the 

Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2022 for a term of five consecutive years to hold the office from 

the conclusion of the said Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of its 62nd Annual General Meeting i.e. till the 
conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held during the year 2027 for conducting statutory audit for the financial 

years 2022-23 to 2026-27. 

Members who are holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in their 

address or bank mandates to the depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advice any change in their address or bank mandates 
immediately to the Company or to the registrar. 

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 20/09/2025 to 

30/09/2025, both days inclusive. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(PAN) by every participant in security markets. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested 

to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/Registrar.
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12. 

13. 

14, 

5. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make nomination in respect of their 
shareholding in the Company. 

Members who have not registered their email addresses so far are requested to register their email address for 

receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company electronically. 

The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared for the financial year 2009-10 to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. The Company has 

uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends lying with the Company on the website of the Company and 
tLhe same can be accessed through the link: 
http:/iwww.organiccoatingslitd.com/InvestorRelations/Shareholdersinformation.aspx. The said details have also 

been uploaded on the website of the |EPF Authority and the same can be accessed through the link: 

www.iepf.gov.in. 

{(a) Adhering to the various requirements set out in the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 

(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, the Company has, during financial year 
2018-19, transferred to the IEPF Authority all shares in respect of which dividend had remained unpaid or 

unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more as on the due date of transfer, i.e. December 01, 2017. Details 

of shares transferred to the IEPF Authority are available on the website of the Company and the same can be 

accessed through the link: 

http://www.organiccoatingsitd.com/InvestorRelations/Shareholdersinformation.aspx. The said details have 
also been uploaded on the website of the IEPF Authority and the same can be accessed through the link: 
www.iepf.gov.in. 

(b) Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed dividends transferred to IEPF Authority can be claimed 
back from them. Concerned members/investors are advised to visit the weblink: 

hitp:/iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html or contact Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for lodging claim for refund or shares 

and/or dividend from the IEPF Authority. 

SEBI has decided that securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form i.e. from 5th 
December, 2018 onwards. In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization, members are 

advised todematerialize shares held by them in physical form. 

Members holding shares in physical mode: 

(a) are required to submit their Permanent Account Number (PAN) and bank account details to the Company / 

MUFG Intime India Pvi. Ltd., if notregistered with the Company as mandated by SEEI. 

(b) are advised to register the nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company. 

(c) are requested to register / update their e-mail address with the Company / Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for 

receiving all communications from the Company electronically. 

Members holding shares in electronic mode: 

(a) are requested to submil their PAN and bank account details to their respective DPs with whom they are 

maintaining their demat accounts. 

(b) are advised to contacttheirrespective DPs for registering the nomination. 

(c) are requested to register / update their e-mail address with their respective DPs for receiving all 

communications from the Company electronically. 

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

INSTAMEET VC INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024, the Companies can 

conduct their AGMs/ EGMs on or before 30 September 2025 by means of Video Conference (VC) or other audio-visual 
means (OAVM), 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demal accounts to access 

InstaMeet facility. 

Login method for shareholders to attend the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

a) VisitURL: https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com & click on"Login". 

b) Selectthe"Company"and Event Date' and register with your following details: 

A. DematAccountNo. orFolio No: 

Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID. 
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Notice 

c) 

Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form - shall provide Folio Number. 

B. PAN: 

Enter your 10-digit PermanentAccount Number (PAN) 

(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the 
sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. Mobile No: Enter your Mobile No. 

D. Email ID: Enter your email Id as recorded with your DP/ Company. 

Click "Go to Meeting” 

You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for the meeting. 

Instructions for shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

a) Shareholders whowould like to speak during the meeting must register their request with the company. 

b) Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the company. 

¢) Shareholders will receive "speaking serial number" once they mark attendance for the meeting. Please 
remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and 

audio of your device. 

d) Other shareholder who has not registered as "Speaker Shareholder” may still ask questions to the panellist via 

active chat-board during the meeting. 

*Shareholders are requested to speak anly when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name and 

serial number for speaking. 

Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated during the meeting, shareholders who have not exercised their vote through the 

remote e-voting can cast the vote as under: 

a) Onthe Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting "Cast your vote” 

b) Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 

registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET 

¢) Clickon'Submit'. 

d) After successful login, you will see "Resolution Description” and against the same the option "Favour/ Against” 

forvoting. 

e) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. "Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares 

(which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 'Favour/Against'. 

f) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on 

"Save". A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "Confirm", else to change 

your vote, click on "Back" and accordingly modify your vote. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you 
will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently. 

Note: 

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voling and are otherwise not barred from doing so. shall be eligible fo 

vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the General Meeting will be eligible to 
attend/ parficipate in the General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during 

the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through 
broadband for better experience. 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Sharehelders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore 

recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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Helpdesk: 

20. 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by sending a request at 

instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com orcontacton; - Tel: 022 - 4918 6000 /4918 6175 

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders: 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. 

The voting period begins on 27/09/2025 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on 29/09/2025 (5.00 p.m.). 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to access e- 

Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL 

METHOD 1 -Individual Shareholders registered with NSDL IDeAS facility 

Shareholders who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility: 

a) VisitURL: https:/feservices.nsdl.comand click on "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login". 

b) EnterUser|D and Password. Click on "Login” 

c) After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voling services under Value added services. Click on 
"Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services. 

d) Click on "MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

OR 

Shareholders who have notregistered for NSDL IDeAS facility: 

a) To register, visit URL: hitps:/leservices.nsdl.com and select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click on 
hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp 

b) Proceedwith updating the required fields. 

¢) Postsuccessful registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password. 

d) Aftersuccessful login, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to 

e-Voling" under e-Voting services. 

e) Click on "MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

METHOD 2 -Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL 

a) VisitURL: https:/fwww.evoting.nsdl.com 

b) Clickonthe"Login"tab available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. 

¢) EnterUserlD (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 

Code as shown on the screen. 

a) Postsuccessful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you will be able to 
see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voling" under e-Voling services. 

b) Click on "MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL 

METHOD 1 -Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility 

Shareholders who have registered/ opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

a) VisitURL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitcken/Home/Login or www.cdslindia.com. 

b) ClickonNew System Myeasi Tab 

¢) Loginwith existing my easi username and password 

d) After successful login, user will be able to see e-voling option. The evoling option will have links of e-voting 

service providers i.e., MUFG InTime, for voting during the remote e-voting period. 
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e) 

OR 

Click on "Link InTime/ MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 
redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Shareholders who have not registered for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

To register, visit URL: hitps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration / 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration 

Proceed with updating the required fields. 

Postregistration, user will be provided username and password. 

After successful login, user able to see e-voling menu. 

Click on "Link InTime / MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Campany's Name" and you will be 

redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of CDSL 

a) Visit URL: https:/fwww.cdslindia.com 

Gotoe-voting tab. 

Enter DematAccount Number (BO ID)and PAN No. and click on "Submit". 

System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Maobile and Email as recorded in Demat 
Account 

After successful authentication, click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside 

Company's Name" and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e- 
voling period. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant 

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your depository 
participant registered with NSDL/ CDSL for e-voting facility. 

a) 

b) 

Login to DP website 

After Successful login, user shall navigate through "e-voting" option. 

Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository website afler successful 

authentication, wherein user can see e-voting feature. 

After successful authentication, click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime" or "evoling link displayed alongside 

Company's Name" and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e- 

voting period. 

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

Shareholders helding shares in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode as 

on the cut-off date for e-voting may registerfor InstaVote as under: 

d) Visit URL: https:/finstavote. linkintime.co.in 

Shareholders who have notregistered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

e) 

E. 

Clickon "Sign Up" under 'SHARE HOLDER'tab and register with your following details: 

User ID: 

NSDL demataccount- User ID is 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digit Client ID. 

CDSLdemataccount - User 1D is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form - User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 

PAN: 

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) 

(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the 

sequence number provided to you, ifapplicable. 

DOB/DOI: 

Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company - in 
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DD/MM/YYYY format) 

H. 

L 

L 

Bank Account Number: 

Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company. 

*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide 'D' above 

**Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C" and ‘D', shall provide their Folio 
numberin ‘D'above 

Setthe password of your choice 

numeral, atleast one alphabet and atleast one capital letter). 

Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 

Click "Submit" (You have now registered on InstaVote). 

Share holders who have registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

f)  Clickon "Login™ under 'SHARE HOLDER'tab. 

A. 

B. 

c. 

D. 

User ID: Enter your User ID 

Password: Enter your Password 

Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 

Click "Submit” 

g) Caslyourvote electronically: 

A. 

m 

After successful login, you will be able to see the "Notification for e-voting". 

B. Select'View'icon. 

C. 

D. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against’ (If you 

E-voting page will appear. 

wish to view the entire Resolution detalls, click on the 'View Resolution' file link). 

After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour/Against, click on 'Submit'. 

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "Yes', else to change your vote, 

click on'No'and accordingly modify your vote. 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders ("Custodian/ Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund"”) 

STEP1-Custodian/ Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration 

Visit URL: https:/finstavote linkintime.co.in 

Click on "Sign Up" under "Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” 

Fill up your entity details and submit the form. 

A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email ID (which is 

filled at the time of sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, Director, Company 

Secretary of the entity & stamped and sentto insla.vote@linkintime.co.in. 

Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to Primary contact person's email ID. 

(You have now registered on InstaVote) 

STEP 2-Investor Mapping 

a) 

b) 

c) 

Visit URL: https:/finstavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials. 

Clickon "Investor Mapping" tab under the Menu Section 

Map the Investor with the following details: 

A. 'Investor D' - 

i. NSDL demat account - User ID is 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digit Client 1D ie., 
INOO000012345678 

i. CDSLdemataccount-UserlDis 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

B. 'Investor's Name - Enter Investor's Name as updated with DP. 

09
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C. 'Investor PAN'- Enter your 10-digit PAN. 

D. 'Power of Attorney' - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney. 

*File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be - DP ID and Client ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signatures. 

E. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund 

Entity). The same can be viewed under the "Report Section". 

STEP 3 -Voting through remote e-voting 

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting period. 

METHOD 1-VOTES ENTRY 

a) VisitURL: https://instavote. linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials. 

b) Click on"Votes Entry" tab under the Menu section. 

c) Enterthe "Event No." for which you want to cast vote. 

Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under "On-going Events”. 

d) Enter"16-digit Demat Account No." for which you want lo cast vote. 

e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' (If you 

wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the 'View Resolution' file link). 

f) Afterselecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on 'Submit'. 

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes', else to change your vote, 
click on 'No' and accordingly modify your vote. 

OR 

METHOD 2 -VOTES UPLOAD 

a) Visit URL: https:/finstavote linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials. 

b) Aftersuccessfullogin, you willbe able to see the "Notification for e-voling". 

c) Select"View"icon for "Company's Name / Event number”. 

d) E-voting page will appear. 

e) Download sample vote file from "Download Sample Vote File" tab. 

f) Castyour vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in the sample vote file and upload the same 
under "Upload Vote File" option. 

g) Clickon'Submit'. 'Data uploaded successfully' message will be displayed. 

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently). 

Helpdesk: 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode: 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at 
enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or contacton: - Tel: 022 - 4918 6000. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical 

issues related to login through Depositoryi.e., NSDL and CDSL. 

Logintype Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
securitiesin demat mode withNSDL | sending arequest atevoting@nsdl.co.inor call at: 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Sharehaolders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
securities in demat mode with CDSL | sending a request at helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 

1800225533 
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ForgotPassword: 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode: 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have 
forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the "Forgot Password" option 
available on: hitps://instavote linkintime.co.in 

»  Clickon "Login" under'SHARE HOLDER'tab. 

= Click "forgot password?" 

=  EnterUserlD, selectMode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). 

=  Clickon"SUBMIT". 

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 

Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the particulars of the Security 
Question and Answer, FAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. The password should contain a 

minimum of 8 characters. al least one special character (I#3&), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least 

one capital letter, 

UserID: 

NSDL demat account - User 1D is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID. 

CDSL demat account - User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID., 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form - User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. 

In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the 

shareholder can use the "Forgot Password" option available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

= Clickon'Login' under "Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund" tab 

= Click "forgot password?" 

= EnterUserID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). 

= Clickon"SUBMIT". 

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 

Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the particulars of the Security 

Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI etc. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special 

character (#8&"), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter, 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER |D [Login ID] or Password or both, 
then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned 

depository/ depository participants website. 

% Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take ulmost care to keep your 

password confidential. 

%  For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

“  During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the 
resolution(s) for a particular "Event” 

InstaVote Support Desk 

MUFG Intime India Private Limited 

21. SCRUTINIZER FOR E-VOTING : Ms. Dhanraj Kothari, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 

4930) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the  e-voling process in a fairand transparent manner. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Sudhir R. Shah 
Company Secretary 

& Compliance Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12" August, 2025 
Registered Office : 
UnitNo. 405, Atlanta Estate Premises Co-op. Soc. Ltd., 

Vitth Bhatti, Goregaon (East), 

Mumbai-400063. 
Email ID: organiccoatingsltd@organiccoatingslitd.com 
CIN : L24220MH1965PLC013187
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 SETTING OUT 
MATERIAL FACTS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING EACH ITEMS OF SPEICAL BUSINESS IN 
THEACCOMPANYING NOTICE 

item 2 

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, atits meeting 

held on 11th August, 2025 proposed the proposal of appointment of Mr. Abhay R. Shah as a Director retiring by rotation at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. The information about the appointee are as under: 

Name of the Director Mr. Abhay R. Shah 

Date of Birth 13/07/1966 

Date of Appointment 01/10/1994 

Expertise in specific functional areas Marketing and production planning. 

Qualifications B.Sc 

No. of shares held in Organic Coatings Ltd. 8,01,632 (8.04%) 

Directorship in other Companies All India Printing Inks Manufacturer's Association Ltd. 

Disclosure of relationship Mr. Abhay R. Shah is related to Mr. Ajay R. Shah, Wholetime 
Director & CFO. 

Membership of Committees in other Public Limited Companies: 

Audit Committee NIL 

Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance NIL 

ftem3 &4 
Information aboutthe appointee 

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, atits meeting 
held on 11th August, 2025 appointed Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy, as an additional director of the Company with 

effect from 11th August, 2025 and his terms expires at this annual general meeting in terms of Section 161 of the 

Companies Act,2013 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 of the 

Companies Act,2013 proposing his candidature as director retiring by rotation and hence the Ordinary resolution as 
proposed atitemno 3. 

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, atits meeting 

held on 11th August, 2025 appointed Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy as a Wholetime Director & Chief Operating Officer 
(COO) subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting on the following 
remuneration and other terms and conditions: 

Particulars Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (p.m.) in Rs. 

Basic 50000.00 

HRA 50000.00 

CanteenAllowance 156000.00 

Travelling Allowance 15000.00 

Children & Education Allowance 10000.00 

Medical Allowance 20000.00 

Telephone Allowance 15000 .00 

Books & Periodical 2848.00 

TOTAL 177848.00 

The Board of Directors will have discretion to consider on merit basis, increment taking into account the company's 
performance which shall be within the overall limits prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, (Excluding 
perquisites namely Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund, gratuity and encashment of 

leave salary at the end of tenure) as amended. 

Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy, Wholetime Director & COO shall be entitled for the following perquisites and benefits: 

1} LTA: The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be entitled to reimbursement of actual leave travel expenses 

once in a year for himself and his family to any destination in India by air/rail/road, however which shall not exceed
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one month's basic salary plus HRA. 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

Provident Fund: The aferesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be entitled to company's contribution towards 
provident fund as per the rules of the Company. 

Gratuity: The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be entitled to payment of gratuity wherever applicable as 
perthe paymentof Gratuity Act, 1972 and amended from time to time as per the rules of the company. 

Leave Encashment: The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be entitled for leave encashment of 

accumulated leave, standing to his credit encashable at the end of his tenure, which shall not lapse during his 
tenure. 

The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending the meetings of the 

Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee or committees thereof. 

The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall not so long as he functions as such, become interested or otherwise 

concerned directly or through his wife/minor children in any selling agency of the Company in future without the prior 
approval of the appropriate authority under the Companies Act, 2013. 

The above remunerationis well within the limits specified in Section 198 and Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Information about the appointee 

Name of the Director Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy 

Date of Birth 27/12/1965 

Date of Appointment 11/08/2025 

Expertise in specific functional areas Sales / Marketing & Operational acitivities 

Qualifications Diploma in Mechanical Engineering 

No. of shares held in Organic Coatings Ltd. NIL 

Directorship in other Companies NIL 

Disclosure of relationship N.A.- 

Membership of Committees in other Public Limited Companies: 

Audit Committee NIL 

Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance NIL 

Except Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN:07282015), being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company and his relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out 
alltemNo.3and 4. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

SudhirR. Shah 
Company Secrelary 

& Compliance Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12" August, 2025 

Registered Office: 

UnitNo. 405, Atlanta Estate Premises Co-op. Soc. Ltd., 
Vitth Bhatti, Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai-400 063. 

Email ID: organiccoatingsltd@organiccoatingsitd.com 
CIN ; L24220MH1965PLC013187 
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Financial Highlights (Rs in lacs) 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 

Sales (Net) 2895.79 2683.40 2289.51 2206.97 1404.90 

Other Income 4.66 6.51 16.67 10.59 523 

Profit / (Loss) before Finance costs, (8.43) 190.52 152.60 57.08 53.58 
Depreciation and amortisation expense, 
exceptional items and tax 

Finance costs 115.56 144.83 149.37 147.01 138.79 

Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation and (123.99) 45,69 3.23 (89.72) (85.41) 
amortisation expense, exceptional items 
and tax 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 86.25 93.04 98.27 107.49 129.76 

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items (210.23) (47.35) (95.04) (197.21) (215.17) 
andtax 

Exceptional items : z : 

Profit/ (Loss) before tax (210.23) (47.35) (95.04) (197.21) (215.17) 

Tax Expense - - 3.02 

Profit/(Loss) for the year (210.23) (47.35) (95.04) (200.23) (215.17) 

Other Comprehensive Income (5.28) (1.87) 0.98 1.24 1.95 

Total comprehensive income for the year (215.51) (49.22) (94.086) (198.99) (213.22) 

Equity Share Capital 997 .46 767.46 767.46 767.46 T67.46 

Reserve and Sruplus (668.24) (648.23) (599.00) (504.94) (305.95) 

Net Worth (Excluding Revaluation 142.31 (87.67) (18.44) 75.62 274.61 
Surplus) 
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Dear members, 

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Company's 60th Annual Report and the Company's Audited Financial 

Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

1.  Financial results 

The Company's financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized below: 

2024 -25 2023 - 24 

(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) 

Revenue from operations 2900.45 2689.91 

Operating expenditure 2908.87 2499.39 

Profit before Interest, Depreciation, Tax (8.43) 180.52 

Less: Finance Cost 115.56 144.83 

Profit/(Loss) after Finance Cost (123.99) 45.69 

Less: Depreciation 86.25 93.04 

Profit (Loss) for the year before tax (210.23) (47.35) 

Add: Exceptional ltems - R 

Profit/(Loss) for the year after exceptional items and before tax (210.23) (47.35) 

Less: Income Tax - 

Profit/(Loss) after tax (210.23) (47.35) 

Add/(Less). Other Comprehensive Income (5.28) (1.87) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (215.51) (49.22) 

2. Company's performance and state of affairs of the company 

* Revenue from operations (net) increased by 7.83% to Rs. 2900.44 Lacs from Rs. 2689.91 Lacs in the previous 

year. 

* PBDIT decreased by 104.42 % to Rs. (8.43) Lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2025 compared to previous year 

Rs. 190.52 Lacs. 

* Total comprehensive (loss) increased by 337.89 % to Rs. (215.51) Lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2025 
compared to previous year Rs. (49.22) Lacs. 

Dividend and transfertoreserves 

In view of the loss, the Board of Directors is unable to recommend any dividend for the financial year 2024-25 and no 
amountis transferred to Reserves for the financial year 2024-25. 

Material changes affecting the company 

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company between 

end of the financial year and date of this report. There has been no change in the nature of business of the company. 

Management Discussion and Analysis Statement and Corporate Governance Report 

The statement on management discussion and analysis, forms part of the annual reportis provided in Annexure | 

Regulation 15{2) of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company since the Company's paid-up capital is less than Rupees Ten 

Crores and net worth is less than Rupees Twenty Five Crores as prescribed under the said regulation and hence the 

provisions relating to the Corporate Governance is not applicable to the Company, hence no Corporate 

Governance Report is given by the Company as a part of the Director's Report. 

Secretarial Standards 

The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. S5-1 and S5-2 relating to the ‘Meetings of the 

Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings', respectively have been duly followed by the Company. 

15
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10. 

1. 

12. 

Director's Responsibility Statement 

Your Directors state that: 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting 

standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Ill to the Act have been followed and there are no 

material departures from the same; 

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as lo give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profitand loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) theDirectors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e} the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and are operating; and 

f)  theDirectors have revised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were 

in place and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

Contracts and arrangements with related parties 

All contracts/arrangementsitransactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were 

in ordinary course of business and on arms length basis and that the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not altracted. The disclosure in Form ADC-2 s provided in Annexure 1. 

The Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved 

by the Board may be access on the Company's website at: www.organiccoatingsitd.com 

Members may refer to Note No. 32 to the financial statement which sets out related party disclosures pursuant to Ind 
AS. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Company. 

Risk Management 

The Risk Management Policy has been framed, implemented and monitored. Major risk identified by the businesses 
and functions are systematically monitored through mitigating actions on continuing basis. 

The development and implementation of Risk Management Policy has been covered in Management Discussion & 

Analysis which forms part of this report. 

Internal Financial Controls 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, During the 

year such conlrols were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed. 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

Mr.Abhay R. Shah, Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, at its 

meeting held on 11th August, 2025 appointed Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy as Additional Director of the 

Company and who holds the office upto the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being proposed to be appointed 

as a Director liable to retire by rotation. The board of directors also on the recommendation of Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee appointed Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy as a Wholetime Director & Chief Operating 

Officer (COO) subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. The 
necessary Special Resolution asrequired is proposed for the approval of the members. 

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors have been appointed for a period of & 

years and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. The Company has received declaration from all the Independent 
Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria of independence prescribed under the act and the 
listing regulations. 

The following are the remuneration policies for the Director’s, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees: 

a. introduction - Organic Coatings Limited recognizes the importance of aligning the business objectives with
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specific and measurable individual objectives and targets. The company has therefore formulated the remuneration 

13. 

14, 

15. 

16. 

17. 

policy for its directors, key personnel and other employees keeping in view the following objectives. 

i ensuring that the level and compensation of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 

and motivate to run the company successfully. 

ii. ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the performance 

benchmarks. 

b. Policy - 

i The Board on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) shall review and 

approve the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors of the Company within the overall limits 

approved by the shareholders. 

ii.  The Board on the recommendation of NRC shall also review and approve the remuneration payable to 

the Key Managerial Personnel. 

jili. The remuneration structure to the Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel shall 
include the following: 

a) Basicpay 

b) Perquisites and allowance 

¢) Retiral benefits 

d) Bonus 

iv. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 

The Board on the recommendation of NRC shall review and approve the remuneration payable to the 

Non-Executive Directors of the Company. 

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and 

the Committees thereof. 

v.  Remuneration to otheremployees 

Employees are assigned grades according to their qualifications and work experience, competencies as 

well as their roles and responsibilities in the organization. Individual remuneration shall be determined 

within the appropriate grade and shall be based on various factors such as job profile, skills sets, 

seniority, experience and prevailing remuneration levels for equivalent jobs. 

Meetings of the Board 

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year 2024-25 on 23/05/2024, 10/08/2024, 05/10/2024, 

06/11/2024 and 14/02/2025. 

Performance Evaluation 

The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and other individual 

directors (including Independent Directors) which include criteria for performance evaluation of the Non-Executive 
and Executive Direclors. The evaluation process inter-alia considers attendance of the Directors at Board and 

Committee Meelings, acquaintance with business, communicating interse board members, effective participation, 

domain knowledge, compliance with code of conduct, reason and strategy. 

The detailed programs for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights and 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the 

Company are being shared and discussed. 

Policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other details 

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. This policy also lays down criteria for selection 

and appointment of Board Members keeping in mind the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
specificrules. 

Internal financial control systems and adequacy 

The details in respect of internal financial control systems and their adequacy are included in the management 

discussion and analysis which forms part of this report. 

Audit Committee 

The audit committee consists of the following members of the Board of Directors: 
17
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18, 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24, 

a) Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni (Independent Director) - Chairperson 

b)  Mr.Dipakkumar K. Kanabar (Independent Director) 

¢) Mr.Ashwinkumar H. Raval (Independent Director) 

d) Mr.AjayR. Shah (Wholetime Director & CFO) 

During the financial year 2024-25, four audit committee meetings were held on 23/05/2024, 10/08/2024, 06/11/2024 
and 14/02/2025. 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee consists of all the Independent Directors consisting of the following 
members of the board of directors: 

a) Mr. Dipakkumar K. Kanabar (Independent Director - Chairman) 

b)  Mrs, Chitkala Y. Kulkami (Independent Director) 

¢)  Mr.Ashwinkumar H. Raval (Independent Director) 

During the financial year 2024-25, three Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings were held on 
23/05/2024, 10/08/2024 and 06/11/2024. 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of the following Directors: 

a)  Mr.Ashwinkumar H. Raval (Independent Director - Chairman) 

b)  Mr. Dipakkumar K. Kanabar (Independent Director) 

c)  Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni (Independent Director) 

d) Mr.AbhayR. Shah (Managing Director) 

During the financial year 2024-25, one Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetingwas  held on 14/02/2025. 

Independent Director’s Meeting 

One meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 14/02/2025. 

Auditors and auditors'report 

Statutory Auditors 

M/s. Soman Uday & Co. Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company at the 

Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2022 for a term of five consecutive years to hold the office from 
the conclusion of the said Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of its 62nd Annual General Meeting i.e. till the 
conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held during the year 2027 for conducting statutory audit for the financial 

years 2022-23 to 2026-27. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the 

Company. 

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of the Company is part of this report. There has been no 
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report. 

Secretarial Auditor 

The Board has appointed D.Kothari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the Secretarial Audit. 
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith and marked as 

Annexure |l to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse 
remark or disclaimer, 

Vigil mechanism 

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also includes Whistle Blower Palicy, includes an ethics and compliance 

task force comprising senior executives of the Company. Protected disclosures can be made by Whistle Blower 

through an email or letter to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. No person has been denied access to the Audit 

Committee. 

Particulars of loans given, investments made, Guarantees given and securities provided 

The Company has not given any loans or made any investments or provided guarantees u/s 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

The particulars related to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as 

required to be disclosed under the act are provided in Annexure IV to this report.
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25, 

26. 

27, 

28. 

29, 

30. 

Annual return 

The annual return of the Company has been placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
www.organiccoatingslitd.com. 

Particulars of employees and related disclosures 

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors, KMPs and employees as required under Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules 2014 are given in Annexure V to this report. 

The Company does not have any employee whose particulars are required to be disclosed in terms of the provisions 

of Section 197(12) of the act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, hence furnishing of the same does not arise. 

Having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the act, the annual report excluding the 

information regarding the top ten employees is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is 

available for inspection on all working days during the business hours al the registered office of the Company. Any 

member interested in obtaining such information, may write to the Company Secretary and the same shall be 
furnished onrequest. 

General 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting required in respect of the following items as there were no 

transactions on these items during the year under review. 

1)  Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the act. 

2)  Issue of Equity Shares to differential rights as lo dividend, voting or otherwise. 

3) Issueof shares (including sweal equity shares) to employees of the Company. 

4) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, hence, the gquestion of receiving remuneration or commission 

by the Managing Directors or Whole Time Directors of the Company from the subsidiaries does nol arise. 

5)  Nosignificant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 
concern status and Company's operation in the future. 

6} Nofraud has been reported by the auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board. 

Sexual Harassment 

a.  Numberof complaints filed during the year NIL 

b.  Numberof complaints resolved during the NIL 

¢. Numberofcases pending beyond 90 days NIL 

Maternity Benefit Act Compliance - We Confirm adherence to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. There was no 

requirement from any employee of your company. 

Acknowledgement 

Your Directors would like to express the sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from 

Shareholders, Bank of Maharashtra, Government Authorities and other Business constituents during the year 

under review, 

Your Directors would also like lo appreciate the commitment displayed by the human resources of the Company., 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Abhay R. Shah 

Managing Director 
(DIN:00016497) 

Ajay R. Shah 

Wholetime Director & CFO 

(DIN:00011763) 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 12" August, 2025 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Industry Structure and Developments 

The Financial year 2024-25 will go down in India's economic history as an unprecedented one with huge fluctuations in 

fortune. 

Ink industry is having great challenges and competition, more so from multinational companies. Raw material price also 

plays a major factor for competitive price offerings to the customers and thereby to capture the market share. 

The Union Budget doubled down on the investment oriented strategy focusing on capital expenditure to kickstart a 

“virtuous cycle of investment” while crowding in private investments. The retum of uncertainty clouded the global macro 

economic and financial landscape even as the global economy struggled to recover from the pandemic. 

The Indian economy is estimated to have grown by 8.9% during the financial year aided by a favorable base but the 

economic recovery across the Seclors was uneven. 

Opportunities and Threats 

The newspaper and magazine circulations fall, advertising revenues are increasingly diverted from print to other 

channels, especially internet channels, facebook etc. These trends will resultin a global decline in consumption of inks. 

Company is visualizing facing major threat from Multinational Companies existing as well as new ones with their financial 
and technological strength. 

Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance 

The Company is mainly dealing with inks and its auxiliaries only, 

Qutlook, Riskand Concerns 

Company should be able to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of all the operations at Vadodara Plant including 

improvementin labour productivity. 

As the world economy is full of challenges and competition, Company is facing risks in terms of Strategy, Operations and 

Financial reporting and increasing compliances. Competition from multinational companies is a major factor to be looked 

into. Geo-political scenario like situation in China, Saudi Arabia, Iraq, Iran, Yemen and Afghanistan may change the 

landscape for Raw Material prices, Exports efc. in the time to come. Change in tax laws more so about GST, interest rate 

structure, Government policies etc. may impact your company’s business. 

Internal Control systems and their Adequacy 

The Internal Control system including of financial of the company is established to ensure that all assets are safeguarded 

and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition to ensure that transactions are authorized, recorded and 
reported correclly and that operations are conducted in an efficient and cost effective manner. Company has appointed 

an independent firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out the work of Internal Audit. Their reports are put and discussed 
in the Audit Committee regularly. Company is also taking guidance for constantimprovement in the operations. 

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance 

* PBDIT increased by 104.42% to Rs. (8.43) Lacs for the year ended 317 March, 2025 compared to previous year Rs. 

190.52 Lacs. 

* Total comprehensive (loss) increased by 337.89% to Rs. (215.51) Lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2025 compared 

to previous year Rs. (49.22) Lacs. 

* Revenue from operations (net) increased by 7.83% to Rs. 2900.45 Lacs from Rs. 2689.91 Lacs in the previous year. 

Material consumption has beenincreased to 80.06% as compared to 75.96% in the previous year. 

Employee benefits expenses have been increased to 4.46% as compared to 3.28% in the previous year. 

Finance cost for the year decreased to Rs. 115.56 Lacs from Rs. 144.83 Lacs inthe previous year. 

Depreciation charged at Rs. 86.25 Lacs as against Rs. 93.04 Lacs in the previous year. 

Material Developments in human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed 

Due to impact of globalization, the role of Human Resource (HR) is having more relevance. There is shortage of talented 
and committed people across industries. Your Company is frying best within its own limitation to move further in this 
regard looking to its nature of operations and requirements. Management would like to thank all the existing as well as 

past employees for their valuable support in difficult economic conditions. The company has 48 permanent employees as 

on31"March, 2025. 

Cautionary Statement 

The report contains forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties when used in this discussion, the 
words like 'plans’, ‘expects’, ‘anlicipates’, ‘believes’, 'intends’, ‘estimates’ or other similar expressions as they relate to 

company or its business are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are based on certain 

assumptions and expectations of future events. The company's aclual results, performance or achievements could differ 

materially from those expressed orimplied in such forward-looking statements.
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FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014). 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred toin sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transaction 
under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis - 

There were no conltracts or arrangements or fransactions entered into during the year ended 31 "March, 2025, which 

were not at arm’s length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions atArm's length basis - 

There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions for the year ended 31st March, 2025 as per the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus this disclosure is not applicable. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Abhay R. Shah 
Managing Director 

(DIN:00016497) 

Ajay R. Shah 
Wholetime Director & CFO 

(DIN:00011763) 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 12" August, 2025 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025 

[Fursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Organic Coatings Limited 

UnitNo. 405, Atlanta Estate Premises Co-op Soc. Ltd. 

Vith Bhatti, Near Virwani Industrial Estate, 

Goregaon (East) 

Mumbai-400 063. 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Organic Coatings Limited, CIN: L24220MH1965PLC013187 (hereinafter called the 

"Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporale conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon., 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report thatin our opinion, the company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of: 

()  TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder, 

{ili) The Depositories Act, 1896 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas, Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBIAct) to the extentapplicable to the Company: 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweal Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit Period); 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
applicable to the company during the Audit Period); 

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable as the Company is not registered as 
Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents), 

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Notapplicable to 
the company during the Audit Period); 

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 
company during the Audit Period); 

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(I}  Secrelarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(i) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. 

To the best of our understanding, we are of the view that during the period under review, the Company has complied with 

the provisions ofthe Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that 

having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant documents and 
records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable 

specifically to the Company:: 

Industries (Development and Regulation) Act, 1951 

The FactoriesAct, 1948 

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1977 

Indian Boilers Act, 1923; 

Information Technology Act, 2000; and 

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

T
 
R
 

General Laws. 

We further report that 

. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 

Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the changes in the composition of Board of Directors that took 

place during the period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions ofthe Act 

. Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

are sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agendaitems before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

. We note from the minutes examined during the course of audit that, at the Board meetings held during the year: (i) 

Decisions were taken through the majority of the Board; and (i) No dissenting views were expressed by any Board 

member on any of the subject matters discussed, which were required to be recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that: 

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company 

to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines 

We further report that during the audit period there was no other event/action having major bearing on affairs of the 
Company. 

This reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms integral part of this report. 

ForD. Kothari And Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Dhanraj Kothari 
Proprietor 

FCSNo.: 4930 
CPNo.: 4675 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 12" August, 2025 

UDIN: FO04930G000987571 

Peer Review Certificate no. 1314/2021 
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To, 

The Members, 
Organic Coatings Limited 
UnitNo. 405, Atlanta Estate Premises Co—Op Soc. Ltd. 
Vith Bhatti, Near Virwani Industrial Estate, 
Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai-400063. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe thal the processes and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events elc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit reportis neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

ForD. Kothari And Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Dhanraj Kothari 
Proprietor 
FCS No. : 4930 
CP No.: 4675 

Place : Mumbai 
Date :12" August, 2025 

ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 
Particulars of energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earmings and outgo required under 

Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 

A. Conservationof energy 

The company's operations do not involve substantial consumption of energy in comparison to the cost of 

production. Wherever possible, energy conservation measures have been implemented, 

B. Technology absorption 

The Company has neither purchased any technology domestically nor imported any technology. Hence, the 

question of furnishing the information regarding technology absorption does not arise. 

(I}  Therevenue expenditure incurred on Research and Developmentis Rs. NIL. 

C. Foreign Exchange earnings and Outgo 

The Company has earned Rs. 115.76 Lacs in Foreign Exchange & used Rs. 51.27 Lacs of Foreign Exchange.
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE 
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

1. Ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the Employees of the company for 

the financial year. 

Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 1,97,760 

The percentage increase/(Decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 22.26% 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31" March, 2025 62 

Name of Director Ratio of remuneration to median % increase in remuneration 

remuneration of all employees inthe Financial Year 

2024-25 

Non-Executive Directors (Sitting Fees) 

Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni 0.73 NA 

Ms. Ashwini Lad 0.08 NA 

Mr. Dipakkumar K. Kanabar 0.48 NA 

Mr. Ashiwnkumar H. Raval 0.73 NA 

Executive Directors (Remuneration) 

Mr. Abhay R. Shah 14.66 NIL 

Mr. Ajay R. Shah 9.37 NIL 

Key Managerial Personnel (Remuneration) 

Mr. Sudhir Shah 273 6.63 

Notes: 

1. The ratio of remuneration to median remuneration is based on remuneration paid during the period 1stApril, 2024 to 
31" March, 2025. 

2. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 

last financial year and its comparison with the percentage increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 

thereofand point outifthere are any exceptional circumstances for increase inthe managerial remuneration: 

The company has given average increment 16.67% to its employees. The company has not given any increment to 

its directors during the year 2024-25. 

3. Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company 

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the policy for remuneration of Directors, Key Personnel 

Manager and other employees. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To 

The Members of Organic Coatings Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Organic Coatings Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act”) in the manner so required 

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the act, 

("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 

31,2025, and its loss and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 

for the Auditof the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our auditof the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's 

Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

1. Trade Receivables - The Company is in the supply of printing inks and auxiliaries to printers all over India. In the 

printing press industry the preference of payments for supplier of inks is the lowesl. Some trade receivables are 

slow in recovery and take time for recovery beyond the limitation period. In some cases suits have been filed for 

recovery and the court judgments are yet to be received. There is therefore a risk for realisation of the trade 

receivables (refer note no. 36). 

How our audit address the key audit matter- 

Our audit procedure included among others examining the pattern of subsequent receipts, the status of various 

legal cases and management's method to determine the recoverability of the amount considering the feedback 

from the market. We validated the appropriateness of the related disclosures in note no. 36 of the financial 

statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's 

Report, Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but 

does not include the consolidated financial statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report 

thereon.
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Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thergon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial 

Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, This responsibility 

alsoincludes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view 

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative butto do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due lto fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected lo influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughoutthe audit. We also: 

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial slatements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 

is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

*  QObtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under seclion 143(3)(l) of the Act, we are also respansible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operaling 

effectiveness of such controls. 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obfained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 

audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thoughtto bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with govermnance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 

describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 

when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in 

terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Acl, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A", a statemenl on the 

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 

Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books 

of account. 

{(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by 

the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a 

director interms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

(g) Withrespect tothe matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 

to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The 

remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be



60" ANNUAL REPORT 

2024-25 
Independent Auditor's Report 

commented upon by us 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

givenious: 

vi. 

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 

malerial foreseeable losses. 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

by the Company. 

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, direclly or 

indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of il's knowledge and belief, no funds have been 

received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies}), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with 

the understanding, whetherrecorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend 

or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 

sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

The has not declared/paid any dividend during the year. 

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for 

maintaining its books of account for the year ended 31st March, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit 

trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in 

the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail 

feature being tampered with. 

Further, the audit trail in the prior year, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements 

for record retention. 

For Soman Uday & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAIFirm Registration No. 110352W 

Uday Soman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDIN: 25038870BMIAYD2532 

Mumbai 

May 30, 2025 
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Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report the 

members of Organic Coatings Limited of even date 

( (a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(i) (a) 

(b) 

(i) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(vii) (a) 

A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets; 

As explained to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at 

reasonable intervals during the year, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the 

Company and nature ofits assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the 

lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial 

statements are held in the name of the company; 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 

orintangible assets or both during the year; 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami 

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder; 

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 

management and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is 

appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed; 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company, during any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits 

in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(ii) of the orderis not applicable; 

The Company has not made invesiments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 

advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or 

any other parties, Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the order is not applicable; 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, 

the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under 

Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India 

and the provisions of the sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there 

under are not required to be complied with by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not 

applicable. 

The Maintenance of costrecords has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section 1 of the 

section 148 of the Act for any of the services by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the order is not 

applicable. 

According to lhe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
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the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including 

() 

goods and service tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales lax, service tax, duty of 

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally been regularly 

deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amounts 

payable were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 

payable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues outstanding of goods and service 

tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income lax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 

excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues on account of dispute which have not been 

deposited with the concerned authorities; 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 

Company, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of accounts in respect of surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961); 

(ix) (a) 

(b) 

(f) 

(x) (a) 

(b) 

(xi) (a) 

(b) 

() 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or other borrowings orin the payment of interest thereon to a bank and financial institution; 

The company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial inslitution or other lender; 

The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained; 

The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes; 

The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 

subsidiaries, assaciates or joint ventures; 

The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 

ventures or associate companies, 

According fo the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the records of the 

Company, the company has not raised maneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 

debtinstruments) during the year; Accordingly, paragraph 3(x){a) of the orderis not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the records of the 

Company, the Company has not made any private placement of shares or convertible debentures {fully, 

partially or optionally convertible) during the year. The company has made preferential allotment of equity 

shares during the year and has complied with the provisions of Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The funds raised have been used for the purposes for which they were raised. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on 

the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, 

paragraph 3(xi) of the orderis not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no reporl under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 

Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government 

No complaints have been received from a whistle blower during the year by the company. 

(xii) Inouropinionand according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi company. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the orderis not applicable. 
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(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the 

Act, where applicable and the details of the same have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 

applicable accounting standards; 

(xiv) (a) Thecompany has aninternal audit sysiem commensurate with the size and nature of its business; 

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us; 

{xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the records of the 

Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 

them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable. 

{xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934 (2 of 

1934). Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the order is notapplicable. 

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid 

Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934, 

@  The company Is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 

Bank of India; 

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 123.99 lakhs in the financial year and has not incurred cash losses in 

the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year; 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial slatements, our knowledge of the Board of 

Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 

report and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing atthe date of balance sheet as and when they fall 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date; 

(xx) Inouropinionand according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub- 

section (5) of Section 135 of the Campanies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 

3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

For Soman Uday & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAIFirm Registration No, 110352W 

Uday Soman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDIN: 25038870BMIAYD2532 

Mumbai 

May 30, 2025
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(Referred to in paragraph (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of 

even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Organic Coalings Limited ("the company") as at 

31stMarch, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the company for the year ended on that 

date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal financial controls over financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver 

Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatementofthe IndAS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

onthe Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorities of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could 

have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, malerials misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 

be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 

are subject fo the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedure may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

lIn our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the company has, in all 

material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Soman Uday & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAIFirm Registration No. 110352W 

Uday Soman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDIN: 25038870BMIAYD2532 

Mumbai 

May 30,2025
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Balance Sheet as at 31™ March, 2025 

T in Lakhs 

Particulars Note Asat Asal 

No. 31" March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plantand equipment 3 869.98 871.15 
Intangible assets 4 0.42 0.42 
Financial assets 
- Otherfinancial assets 5 44.64 44.21 
Othernon currentassels - - 
Total non-current assets 915.04 915.78 
Current assets 
Inventories 6 338.26 312.66 
Financial assets 
- Trade receivables 7 484,95 637.98 
-Cash and cash equivalents 8 5.88 0.68 
- Other financial assets 9 497 4.56 

Othercurrent assels 10 27.73 - 39.88 
Total current assets 861.79 995.76 
Total Assets 1,776.83 1,911.54 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Equity Share capital " 997.46 767.46 
Other equity 12 (668.24) (648.23) 
Total equity 329.22 119.23 
Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
-Borrowings 13 441.61 567.61 
Other Financials liabilities 14 11.13 15.13 
Provisions 15 26.65 12.87 
Total non-current liabilities 479.39 595.61 
Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
-Borrowings 16 330.93 517.46 
- Trade payables 17 

- (a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 51.72 27.75 
- (b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 535.09 587.27 
Other current liabilities 18 43.00 49.83 
Provisions 19 7.48 14.38 
Total current liabilities 968.22 1,196.69 
Total liabilities 1,447.61 1,792.30 
Total equity and liabilities ) B o 1,776.83 1,911.54 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the 1-44 
Financial Statements. 

As perour Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Soman Uday & Co. CIN No, L24220MH1965PLC013187 

Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

Uday Soman Abhay R Shah Ajay R Shah 
Proprietor Managing Director Whole Time Directorand CFO 
Membership No: 38870 DIN: 00016497 DIN: 00011763 

SudhirR Shah 

Mumbai 
May 30,2025 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mumbai 
May 30, 2025 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31* March, 2025 

T in Lakhs 

Particulars Note Fortheyearended Fortheyearended 

No. 31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

INCOME 

Revenue from operations 20 2,895.79 2,683.40 

Other Income 21 4.66 6.51 

Total income 2,900.45 2,689.91 

EXPENSES 

Costof materials consumed 22 2,162.68 1,767.61 

Changes ininventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 23 (15.51) 9.89 

Employee benefits expense 24 129.10 87.96 

Finance costs 25 115.56 144.83 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 86.25 93.04 

Other expenses 27 632.60 633.93 

Total Expenses 3,110.68 2,737.26 

(Loss) before tax (210.23) (47.35) 

Tax Expense: 

Less: Current Tax - - 

(Loss) forthe Year (210.23) (47.35) 
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 

Add/(Less): Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (5.28) (1.87) 

Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (5.28) (1.87) 

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year (215.51) (49.22) 

Earnings perequity share of face value of ¥10 each 

Basic(in?) 28 (2.11) (0.62) 

Diluted (in%) (2.11) (0.62) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the 1-44 

financial statements. 

As perour Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Soman Uday & Co. CIN No. L24220MH1965PLC013187 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

Uday Soman Abhay R Shah Ajay R Shah 

Proprietor Managing Director Whole Time Directorand CFO 

Membership No; 38870 DIN: 00016497 DIN: 00011763 

SudhirR Shah 

Mumbai 

May 30,2025 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mumbai 

May 30, 2025
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31* March, 2025 

Tin Lakhs 
Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

A. Cash flowfrom operating activities 
Net (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (210.24) (47.35) 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 86.25 93.04 
Actuarial Gain/Loss (5.28) (1.87) 
(Profit) / loss an sale / write off of assets 0.16 0.03 
Finance costs 115.56 144.83 
Interestincome (3.84) (1.78) 
Operating profit before working capital changes (17.39) 186.90 
Changes in working capital: 
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assels: 
Inventaries (25.61) (9.87) 
Trade receivables 153.02 (18.97) 
Other current financial assets (0.41) 0.38 
Other current assets 12.15 9.41 
Other non current financial assets (0.42) 0.1 
Other non current assels - 0.14 

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities: 
Trade payables (28.18) 105.33 
Other current financial liabilities - B 
Other current liabilities (6.82) (6.43) 
Current provisions (6.90) 4.90 
Other non current financial liabilities (4.00) (6.00) 
Non current provisions 13.78 4.07 
Cash Generation from Operation 89.22 269.97 
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 89.22 269.97 
B. CashFlow From Investing Activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (85.25) (14.11) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - - 
Interest Income 3.84 1.78 
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (81.42) (12.33) 
C. Cashflowfrom financing activities 
Netincrease/ (decrease)in current financial liabilities for borrowings (186.53) (8.21) 
Netincrease/ (decrease)in non current financial liabilities for borrowings (125.99) (105.21) 
Proceeds from issue of Shares on preferential allotment 425.50 
Finance cost (115.56) (144.83) 
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) (2.59) (258.25) 
Netincrease / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 5.20 (0.61) 
Cashand cash equivalents atthe Beginning of the year 0.68 1.29 
Cashand cash equivalents atthe end of the year* 5.88 0.68 

{5.20) 0.61 
*Comprises: 
(a) Cashonhand 0.05 0.06 
(b) Balances with banks 

(i) Incurrentaccounts 5.42 0.23 
(i) InEEFC accounts - - 
(iii) Indepositaccounts with Banks 0.41 0.39 

5.88 0.68 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
As per our Reportof even date Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Soman Uday & Co. CIN No. L24220MH1965PLC013187 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

Uday Soman Abhay R Shah Ajay R Shah 
Proprietor Managing Director Whole Time Director and CFO 
Membership No: 38870 DIN: 00016497 DIN: 00011763 

Sudhir R Shah 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mumbai Mumbai 
May 30, 2025 May 30,2025
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1. 

2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

2.4 

Corporate information 

*The Company was incorporated on 22nd April, 1965 as a Privale Limited company limited by shares. It was 

converted in Public Limited company in the year 1995. It has its Registered office in Mumbai and manufacturing 

facility at village Umaraya, Taluka-Padra, Dist-Vadodara,Gujarat, India. The Company is listed on the Bombay 

Stock Exchange (BSE). The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading in Printing Inks & 
Allied products. The company sells its products across India and to other countries.” 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and 

authorised forissue on May 30, 2025. 

Significant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared on the following basis: 

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as prescribed under section 133 of the 

Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time lo 

time. 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except following assets and liabilities 

which have been measured at fair value: 

(I)  Landand building forming part of Property, plant and equipment 

(i) Defined Benefit plans-plan assets 

Up to the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the 
requirement of Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) which includes standards notified under 

the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as " Previous GAAP". 

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ("T") which is the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the Company operates. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements are in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management lo make 

estimates,judgement and assumptions. These eslimates judgement and assumption affect the application of 

accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which 
changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Revenue recognition 

Sales of goods are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Sale of goods is net of 

Indirecttaxes,returns and discounts. 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest rate method. Dividend income is 

accounted for when the right to receive the payment is established. 

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that 

there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims. 

Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is 
accounted for on receipt basis. 

Inventories 

Inventories of Raw Materials, Consumable Stores, Packing Materials, Work in Progress and Finished Goods are 

valued at lower of Cost and net realisable Value. Cost Comprises all cost of purchase and other cost incurred in 

bringing inventories to their present location and condition. Work in Progress and Finished Goods include 

appropriate amount proportions of the overhead. Imported raw materials, stock in transit are valued at cost and 

customs duty thereon. 
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2.6 

27 

2.8 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates 

including any cost, directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for its intended use, net 

charges on foreign exchange arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses, if any except for certain property, plant and equipment, which have been 

revalued. 

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line 

method. 

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows : 

Buildings- 30 Years 

Plantand Machinery - 15Years 

Electric Installation and Lab Instrument- 10 Years 

Office Equipment- 5Years 

Computer Equipment- 3Years 

Furniture and Fixures- 10 Years 

Vehicles- 8 Years 

Subseqguent costs are included In the assel’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can 

be measured reliably. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plantand equipment are reviewed at sach 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of 

Profitand Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Capital Work in Progress if any, are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and 

attributable interest. 

Depreciation /Amortisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment/intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, after 

taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of 

the assets annually in order o determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any 

reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company's historical experience with similar 

assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation/ amortisation for future periods is 

revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates. 

Intangible Assets 

“Intangible Assels are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 

accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing 

costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net 
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the 
intangible assels." 

“Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

only whenitis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can 

be measured reliably.” 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial 

year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

when the assetis derecognised. 

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation 

Transactions denominated in the foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of 

transaction or thal approximates the actual rate at the date of the ransaction. 

The monetary assets and liabilities denominated in the foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency 

closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.



60" ANNUAL REPORT 

2024-25 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

2.9 

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement on translation is recognised in the 

Statement of profit and loss except in the case the long term liabilities, if any, where they relate to the acquisition of 

the fixed assets, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying amount of such assets. 

Employees Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 

Provident Fund & ESIC are defined contribution schemes established under a State Plan. The conlributions to the 

schemes are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year when the contributions become due. 

Defined Benefit Plans 

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service 
gets a gratuity on post employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of services as per 

the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made 

using Project Unit Credit Method at the end of the financial year. The scheme is funded with an insurance company 
in the form of a qualifying insurance policy. Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss in 

the year in which they arise. 

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive 

Income. 

Compensated Absences 

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in 

nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed 

by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount 

expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance sheet date. 
Employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment. The liability in respect of 

leave encashment is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of the financial year using 

Project Unit Credit Method. The said liability is not funded. 

2.10 Borrowing Cost 

21 

"Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are 

capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes substantial period of time to get 

ready forits intended use.* 

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Fair value Measurement: 

Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 

into account the characteristics of asset and liability if market participants would take those into consideration. Fair 

value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined in such basis 
except fortransactions in the scope of Ind AS 2, 17 and 36. Normally atinitial recognition, the transaction price is the 

best evidence of fair value. 

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market parlicipants act in their economic best interest. A Fair value 

measurement of a non-financial asset takes in to account a market participants ability to generate economic 

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the 
asselinits highest and bestuse. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 

to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

. Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) market prices and active market foridentical assets and liabilities. 

+  Level2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fair value 
measurementis directly orindirectly observable. 41
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+  Level 3—Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable. 

For assels and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by the re assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 

reporting period. 

2.12 Financial Instruments 

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. The Company recognises a financial assel or financial liability in its balance sheet only 
when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

a. Financial assets: 

Afinancial asset inter-alia includes any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. The Company recognises a financial asset or financial liability in 
its balance sheet only when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction 

costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed In Statement of Profit and Loss. 

When transaction price is not the measure of fair value and fair value is determined using a valuation method that 

uses data from observable market, the difference between transaction price and fair value is recognised in 

Statement of Profit and Loss and in other cases spread over life of the financial instrument using effective interest 

method. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assels are classified in three categories: 

»  Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

. Financial asset at fair value through OCI 

. Financial assets atfair value through profitor loss 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

Financial assets are measured al amortised cost if the financial assel is held within a business model whose 

objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding. These financial assets are amortised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. 

Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 

an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profitand loss. The 
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in finance costs. 

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the financial asset is held within 

a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 

and the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Atinitial recognition, an irrevocable election Is made {on 

an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments other than held for trading 
purpose at FVTOCI. Fair value changes are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 

Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 

income statement. On derecognition of the financial asset other than equity instruments, cumulative gain or loss 

previously recognised in OClis reclassified lo income statements. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortised cost or as financial assets at fair 

value through other comprehensive income, is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 

Further, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss also include financial assets held for trading and financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held 
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets at fair 
value ugh profit or loss are fair valued at each reporting date with all the changes recognised in the Statement of 
profitand loss.
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De-recognition of financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. Ifthe Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

financial asset and continues to control the transferred assel, the Company recognises its retained interest in the 

assetand an associaled liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and 

alsorecognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds receivables. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model on the following: 

a) Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost. 

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

ECL is measured through aloss allowance on a following basis: - 

a) The twelve month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events 

onthefinancial instruments that are possible within twelve months after the reporting date) 

b)  Fulllife time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events aver the 

life of financial instruments) 

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment on trade receivables or contract assets 
resulting from normal business transactions. The application of simplified approach does nol require the Company 

1o track changes in credit risk. However, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each 

reporting date, from the date of initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Company determines whether there has been a 

significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is 
provided. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company assesses the credit risk 

characteristics on instrument-by-instrument basis. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original 

EIR. 

Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as expense/income in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

b. Financialliabilities and equity instruments: 

Classification as debt or equity 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the 

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting 

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directissue costs. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company's financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including book overdraft, trade payable, accrued 

expenses and other payables. 

Initial Recognition and measurement 

"All financial liabilities at initial recognition are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost or financial liabilities 

atfair value through profitor loss, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the 

case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. Any difference between 

the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss orin the "Expenditure Attributable to Construction” if another standard permit inclusion of such cost in the 

carrying amount of an asset over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.” 

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends upon the classification as described below: - 
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Financlal Liabilities classified at Amortised Cost: 

Financial Liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost 

at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 

premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are integral part of the Effective Interest Rate. Interest expense thatis 
not capitalised as part of cost of assets is included as Finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial Liabilities at Fair value through profitand loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL includes financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as 
FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 

near term. Financial liabilities have not been designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL. 

Derecognition 

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged/cancelled/expired. When an 

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de recognition of 

the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 

recognised in the statement of profitand loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and net amount is reported if there is currently enforceable legal right to 

offset the recognised amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, to realise assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

2.13 Earnings pershare 

“Basic Earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit from continuing operations and total profits, both 

attributable to equity share holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the period. Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity and 
dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.” 

2.14 Income Tax Expenses 

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to the items recognised directly in equity or in other 

comprehensive income. 

Currenttax 

Current tax includes provision for Income Tax computed under special provision (i.e. Minimum Alternate Tax) or 

normal provision of Income Tax Act provisions. Currentincome tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities on the basis of estimated taxable Income. The tax 

rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 

date. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 

statements and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are 

recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to increase taxable profit in the future. Deferred tax 

assets are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce taxable profitin the future, and any 
unused tax losses or unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are measured at the highest amount that, on the basis 

of current or estimated future taxable profit, is more likely than not to be recovered. The net carrying amount of 

deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current assessment of future 

taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in 

which it expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the deferred tax liability to be settied, on the basis of tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 

against current tax liabilities and when they relate to the income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed 
depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient 

future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences of
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2.15 

other items only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which these can be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for their 

realisability. 

Research and Development 

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Development costs of 

products are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a product’s technological feasibility has been 
established, in which case such expenditure is capitalised. The amount capitalised comprises expenditure that can 

be directly attributed or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to creating, producing and making the asset 

ready for its intended use. Fixed assets utilised for research and development are capitalised and depreciated in 

accordance with the policies stated for Tangible Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets. 

2.16 Impairment of Assets non-financial assets - property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

"The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If 

any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is 

recognised, if the carrying amount of these assels exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 

the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash 

flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. " 

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no longer 

exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

exceptin case of revalued assets. 

2.17 Provisions and Contingent Liability 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 

when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognised as a finance cosl. 

Contingent liabilities and commitments are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingents assets are 

neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 
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2024-25 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Tin Lakhs 

Particulars Computer software Patents Total 

Gross Block 

Atcostorfairvalue as at01.04.2023 8.94 6.76 15.70 

Additions - - 

Disposals - - 

Atcostorfairvalue as at 31.03.2024 8.94 6.76 15.70 

Additions 

Disposals - 

Atcostorfairvalue as at31.03.2025 8.94 6.76 15.70 

Depreciation Block 

Asat01.04.2023 8.86 6.42 15.28 

Depreciation for the year = 

Disposals - 

Accumulated depreciation as atthe 31.03.2024 8.86 6.42 15.28 

Depreciation for the year = : 

Disposals = - 

Accumulated depreciation as atthe 31.03.2025 8.86 6.42 15.28 

Net Block 

Asat31.03.2024 0.08 0.34 0.42 

As at31.03.2025 0.08 0.34 0.42 

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat As at 

31"March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good 

Prepaid Expenses 0.11 0.18 

Security Deposits 32.69 32.69 

Secured 

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 9.92 9.91 

InterestAccrued on Deposits 1.92 1.43 

TOTAL 44.64 44.21 

6. INVENTORIES 

(At Lower of costand net realisable value) ZinlLakhs 

Particulars Asat As at 
31" March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

Raw materials 181.72 169.25 

Work-in-progress 42.89 47.59 

Finished goods 83.46 63.25 

Consumables stores 12.71 11.28 

Packing materials 17.48 21.28 

TOTAL 338.26 31266 47
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

7. TRADERECEIVABLES TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat 

31" March, 2025 

Asat 

31" March, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good 

Undisputed Trade receivable 443.07 586.10 

Disputed Trade receivable 41.88 41.88 

TOTAL 484.95 637.98 

7.1 Ageing of the trade receivables as at 31" March, 2025 ZinLakhs 

Particulars Current | Outstanding as at 31st March, 2025 from due date of payment 

butnot | Lessthan 6 |6 Months-| 1-2 2-3 |Morethan3a| rotal 
due Months 1 year years | years years 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 

Considered Good 368.46 11.08 11.98 9.80 222 39.53 443.07 

Disputed Trade Receivables 

Considered Good - - - - - 41.88 41.88 

TOTAL 368.46 11.08 11.98 980 2.22 81.41 | 484.95 

7.2 Ageing of the trade receivables as at 31" March, 2024 tinLakhs 

Particulars Current |Outstanding as at 31st March, 2024 from due date of payment 

butnot | Lessthan6 |6 Months-| 1-2 | 2-3 |Morethan3| rotal 
due Months 1 year years | years years 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 

Considered Good 521.93 13.35 12.26 426 7.88 36.43 596.10 

Disputed Trade Receivables 

Considered Good = = - - - 41.88 41.88 

TOTAL 521.93 13.35 12.26 426 787 78.31 | 637.98 

8. CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Balance With Banks 

-In Currentaccounts 5.42 0.23 

-In EEFC accounts 0.00 0.00 

-In Deposit accounts 0.41 0.39 

Cash on Hand 0.05 0.06 

TOTAL 5.88 0.68 

9. OTHERFINANCIALASSETS TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good 

Security Deposils 1.89 1.79 

Loans to Staff 1.10 1.50 

InterestAccrued on Deposits 1.98 1.27 

TOTAL 4.97 4.56 



60" ANNUAL REPORT 

2024-25 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

10. OTHER CURRENT ASSET ZinLakhs 

Particulars As at Asat 

31" March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

Unsecured, considered good 

Prepaid Expenses 4.48 5.67 

Balance with Government Authorities 

- Balance With GST Authority 1.56 0.70 

-\VAT credit receivable 7.77 B8.04 

Income Tax (net) 11.70 13.26 

Advances to suppliers 222 12.21 

TOTAL 27.73 39.88 

11. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL ZinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 
31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

(a) Authorised 

1,00,00,000 (1,00,00,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 1,000.00 1,000.00 

(b) Issued 

100,00,000(77.,00,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 1000.00 770.00 

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up 

76,74,600(76,74,600) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 767.46 T67.46 

Add: preferential Allotement of 23,00,000 equity shares at face value T 10 per 230.00 B 

share during the year 

99,74,600 (76,74,600) Equity shares of T 10 each - B 

TOTAL 997.46 767.46 

11,1 The Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding is set out below 

Particulars As at Asat 

31" March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

(No of Shares) (No of Shares) 

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 76,74,600 76,74,600 

Add: preferential Allotement of 23,00,000 equity shares atface value? 10 per 

share during the year 23,00,000 - 

Equity Shares at the end of the year 99,74,600 76,74,600 

11.2  Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. Each holder of the Equity shares 

is entilled to one vole per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees and every equity share is 

entitled to the same rate of dividend. 

The company has issued and allotted on 6th December, 2024, 23,00,000 Equity Shares at a price of ¥ 18.50 (including 

premium of T 8.50) per share on preferential basis to non-promoters for a aggregate value of ¥ 425.50 Lacs after 

complying the necessary provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Reguirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets 

of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.



Organic Coatings Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

11.3 Details of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares 

Name of the Shareholders Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

No of Shares No of Shares 

% of holding % of holding 

Mr Rajnikant K Shah 11,13,204 16,08,204 

[Include 3,08,310 (3.09%) Shares of Rajnikant K Shah (HUF) 11.16% 20.95% 
(Previous Year 8,03,310 (10.47%)) 

Ajay R Shah 6,38,352 6,38,352 
6.40% 8.32% 

Abhay R Shah 8,01,632 8,01,632 
8.04% 10.45% 

Dipak K Shah 2,60,000 5,60,000 

2.61% 7.30% 

Abhinav D Sadarangani 9,31,750 
9.34% 

Bindu Patel 6,78,500 
6.80% 

Nikhil Sadarangani 9,31,750 

9.34% 

11.4 Details of the shares held by promoters equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 

Promoter Name As at 31" March, 2025 
No of the shares Change | No of the shares % of Total | % of change 

as the beginning during as the end Shares during 

of the year the year of the year the year 

Rajnikant Kodarlal Shah 8,04,894 - 8,04,894 8.07 - 

R K Shah (Huf) 8,03,310 4,95,000 3,08,310 3.08 7.38 
Abhay Rajnikant Shah 8,01,632 - 8,01,632 8.04 - 
Ajay Rajnikant Shah 6,38,352 - 6,38,352 6.40 
Aparna Ajay Shah 291915 - 291915 293 
Padmaja Rajnikant Shah 232,600 - 2,32,600 233 
Manoj Vasantlal Mehta 2,30,500 - 2,30,500 2.31 - 
Jawahar Vasantlal Mehta 2,05,000 - 2,05,000 2.08 - 

Minal Abhay Shah 1,61,865 - 1,61,865 1.62 
Jagruti Jawaharlal Mehta 66,000 - 66,000 0.66 
Dimple Manoj Mehta 49,000 - 49,000 0.49 - 
Total 42,85,068 4,95,000 37,90,068 38.00 7.38 

Promoter Name As at 31" March, 2024 

No of the shares Change | No of the shares % of Total  |% of change 

as the beginning during as the end Shares during 
of the year the year of the year the year 

Rajnikant Kodarlal Shah 8.04.894 - 8,04,894 10.49 - 
R K Shah (Huf) 8,03,310 - 8,03,310 10.47 
Abhay Rajnikant Shah 8,01,632 - 8,01,632 10.45 - 
Ajay Rajnikant Shah 6,38.352 - 6,38.352 8.32 
Aparmna Ajay Shah 291915 - 291915 3.80 
Padmaja Rajnikant Shah 2,32,600 - 2,32,600 3.03 
Manoj Vasantlal Mehta 2,30,500 - 2,30,500 3.00 
Jawahar Vasantlal Mehta 2,05,000 - 2,05,000 2.67 
Minal Abhay Shah 1,61,865 - 1.61,865 21 
Jagruti Jawaharlal Mehta 66,000 - 66,000 0.86 

_ Dimple Manoj Mehta 49,000 - 49,000 0.64 

50 Total 42,85,068 : 42,85,068 55.84 : 



60" ANNUAL REPORT 

2024-25 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

12. OTHER EQUITY ZinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Capital Reserve 

Balance atthe Beginning of the year 1.20 1.20 

Balance at the end of the year 1.20 1.20 

Securities premium account 

Balance at the Beginning of the year 778.45 778.45 

Add: Prefertial Allotement of 23,00,000 equity shares at premium of 195.50 - 

¥ 8.50 share during the year 

Balance at the end of the year 973.95 778.45 

General reserve 

Balance atthe Beginning of the year 52.82 52.82 

Balance atthe end of the year 52.82 52.82 

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profitand Loss 

Balance at the Beginning of the year (1.670.70) (1,623.35) 

Add/(Less): Profit/{Loss) for the year (210.23) (47.35) 

Balance atthe end of the year (1,880,94) (1,670.70) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Revaluation Surplus 

Balance atthe Beginning of the year 186.90 186.90 

Balance atthe end of the year 186.90 186.90 

Other comprehensive income 

Balance atthe Beginning of the year 3.10 497 

Add: Addition/(Deduction) during the year (5.28) (1.87) 

Balance atthe end of the year (2.18) 3.10 

TOTAL (668.24) (648.23) 

13. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Secured 

Term Loans from Banks 

Working Capital Term-Loan 441.61 567.61 

TOTAL 441.61 567.61 

13,1 The Term Loans on Plant and Equipment are secured by Equitable mortgage of Factory Land and Building and 

hypothecation of Plant and Equipment at Village Umraya, Taluka-Padra, District- Vadodara. These loans are 
further guaranteed by the working directors in their personal capacity. 

51
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

13.2 Maturity Profile of the Term loans for Working Capital are set out as under TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

0-1Year 114.41 103.66 

1-2 Years 114.41 101.05 

2-3Years 87.10 101.05 

Above 3 Years 240.10 365.51 

441.61 567.61 

TOTAL 556.02 671.27 

14. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31%March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Security Deposits Received 11.13 16.13 

TOTAL 11.13 15.13 

15. NON CURRENT PROVISIONS TinLakhs 

Particulars As at As at 

31"March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Provision for leave encashment 12.13 10.28 

Provision for gratuity 14.52 2.59 

TOTAL 26.65 12.87 

16. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS <inLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

From Banks 

Secured 

Working capital loans - repayable on demand 200.00 400.00 

Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note No : 13.2) 114.41 103.66 

Loans and advances from related parties 

Unsecured 

Fromdirectors 16.52 13.80 

TOTAL 330.93 517.46 

17. TRADE PAYABLES TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small Enterprises 51.72 2775 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small Enterprises 401.24 266.50 

Overdraft (over Issuance of Cheque) 133.85 320.77 

TOTAL 586.81 615.02 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

17.1 Ageing of the trade payables as at 31" March, 2025 ZinLakhs 

Particulars Outstanding as at 31" March, 2025 from due date of payment Total 

Unbilled | Not due |Less than 1-2 2-3 More than 

1 year years years 3 years 

Total outstanding dues of micro - 51.72 - - - - 51.72 

and small Enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of - 417.55 117.02 0.18 012 0.22 535.09 

creditors other than micro and 

small Enterprises 

- 469.27 | 117.02 0.18 0.12 0.22 | 586.81 

17.2 Ageing of the trade payables as at 31" March, 2024 2in Lakhs 

Particulars Outstanding as at 31" March, 2024 from due date of payment Total 

Unbilled | Not due |Less than 1-2 2-3  |More than 
1 year years years 3 years 

Total outstanding dues of micro - 27.75 - - - - 27.75 

and small Enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of - 569.82 16.30 0.93 017 0.05 587.27 

creditors other than micro and 

small Enterprises 

- 597.57 16.30 0.93 0.17 0.05 615.02 

17.3  There are no outstanding disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises and creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises. 

18. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES TinLakhs 

Particulars As at Asal 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Others Payables 

- Statutory Dues 17.85 30.15 

- Expenses payable 24.20 18.83 

-Advance Received from customers 0.95 0.85 

TOTAL 43.00 49.83 

19. PROVISIONS TinLakhs 

Particulars As at Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Provision for employee benefits 

-Provision for leave encashment 7.48 14.38 

TOTAL 7.48 14.38 



Organic Coatings Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS TinLakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

Sale of products 2,682.00 2,340.14 

Processing Charges 213.79 343.26 

TOTAL 2,895.79 2,683.40 

20.1 PARTICULARS OF SALE OF PRODUCTS in Lakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Manufactured goods 

Printing Ink 2,441.81 2,166.12 

Coatings 38.53 40.48 

Auxiliaries 201.66 133.54 

TOTAL 2,682.00 2,340.14 

21. OTHER INCOME TinLakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Operationincome 

Interest received 3.84 1.78 

Bad Debt Recovered - 0.76 

Other Income - 0.08 

Net Profit on foreign currency transactions and translation (Net) 0.82 3.89 

TOTAL 4.66 6.51 

22.COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED Tin Lakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31*March,2024 

Raw material consumed 

Opening stock 169.25 161.25 

Add: Purchases 1,987.87 1.606.74 

2,157.12 1,767.99 

Less ; Closing stock 181.72 169.25 

Cost of raw material consumed 1,975.39 1,598.74 

Packing material consumed 

Opening stock 21.29 12.48 

Add : Purchases 183.48 177.68 

204.77 190.16 

Less : Closing Stock 17.48 21.29 

Cost of packing material consumed 187.29 168.87 

TOTAL 2,162.68 1.767.61 
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22.1 PARTICULARS OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED TinLakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Chemicals 244.86 185.81 

Pigment 760.07 625.88 

Resins 478.30 397.27 

Oil and miscellaneous 492.16 389.78 

TOTAL 1,975.39 1,598.74 

22.2 PARTICULARS OF IMPORTS AND INDIGINIOUS CONSUMPTION AND PERCENTAGE OF CONSUMPTION 

TinLakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

Raw material consumed 

Imported 51.27 102.32 

Indigenous 1,924.12 1,496.42 

TOTAL 1,975.39 1,598.74 

Percentage raw material consumed 

Imported 2.60% 6.40% 

Indigenous 97.40% 93.60% 

TOTAL 100.00% 100.00% 

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS ZinLakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Inventories (atclose) 

Finished Goods 83.46 63.25 

Work-in-Progress 42.89 47.59 

126.35 110.85 

Inventories (at commencement) 

Finished goods 63.25 72.24 

Work-in-Progress 47.59 48.50 

110.84 120.74 

TOTAL (15.51) 9.89 
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24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE Tin Lakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe year ended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Salary 103.18 76.22 

Contribution to provident and other funds 23.69 8.68 

Staff welfare expenses 2.23 3.06 

TOTAL 129.10 87.96 

24.1 : As per Ind Accounting Standard 19 (Revised) " Employee Benefits", the disclosure as defined in the Accounting 

Standard are given below: 

Defined Contribution Plan 

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as expenses for the year as under: ZinLakhs 

Particulars Forthe year ended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Employer's contribution to provident fund 10.85 7.72 

TOTAL 10.85 7.72 

Defined Benefit Plan 

(l) Recognition of Opening and Closing Balances of Defined Benefit Obligation of Gratuity and Fair Value of the 

Plan Assets (Funded) 2inLakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 
31" March, 2025 317 March, 2024 

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the Year 42.04 36.84 

Currentservice cost 1.82 17 

Past service cost 7.70 

Interest on defined benefit obligation 2.23 1.94 

Remeasurements due lo 

-Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 1.20 0.32 

-Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic assumplions - - 

-Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes 3.40 1.24 

Benefit paid (21.47) - 

Defined Benefit obligation at the end of the year 36.92 42.05 

Fairvalue of the plan assets at the beginning of the year 39.45 36.97 

Employer contribution 2.35 0.10 

Intereston plan assets 277 2.69 

Administration expenses - - 

Remeasurements due to 

-Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (0.69) (0.32) 

Benefit paid (21.47) - 

Fairvalue of the plan assets at the end of the Year 22.41 3944 
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(Il) Reconciliation of the Fair Value of the Plan Assets and Defined Benefit Obligation TinLakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Fairvalue of the plan assets 22.41 39.44 

Present value of the obligation 36.92 42.05 

Amount recognised in the balance sheet 14.51 2.61 

(I11) Expenses Recognised During the year ZinLakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Currentservice cost 1.82 1.71 

Past service cost 7.70 - 

Interest on net defined benefitliability /(asset) (0.53) (0.76) 

TOTAL 8.99 0.95 

(IV) Investment Details 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Insured managed funds 100% 100% 

TOTAL 100% 100% 

(V) Actuarial Assumptions of Gratuity 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 
31"March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Discountrate (perannum) 6.70% 7.20% 

Rate of escalation in salary (perannum) 6.00% 6.00% 

Thediscount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for 

the eslimated term of the obligations. 

The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other 

relevant factors. 

25. FINANCE COSTS TinLakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Interestexpense on 

Borrowings 111.35 140.50 

Other borrowing costs 4.21 433 

TOTAL 115.56 144.83 

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE Tin Lakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Fortheyearended 

31" March, 2025 31% March, 2024 

Depreciation and amorlisation 86.25 93.04 

TOTAL 86.25 93.04 
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27.OTHER EXPENSES ¥inLakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Manufacturing Expenses 

Power and fuel 117.78 137.15 

Factory expenses 23.26 19.62 

Wages and labour charges 254.44 262.52 

Repairs to machinery 57.72 50.21 

453.20 469.50 

Establishment Expenses 

Rent 8.99 8.88 

Repairs to building 10.98 0.13 

Insurance 6.91 8.41 

Rates and taxes 0.81 0.71 

Communication expenses 2.99 312 

Loss on sale of assels (Net) 0.16 0.03 

Travelling and conveyance 14.03 10.19 

Printing and stationary 1.96 1.72 

Legal and professional charges 27.10 34.85 

Payment to auditors (refer note no. 27.2) 2.23 2.29 

Motor car expenses 11.84 13.47 

Miscellaneous Expenses 26.12 18.78 

114.12 102.58 

Selling and Distribution Expenses 

Freight and forwarding 53.27 45.35 

Sales commission and discount 12.01 16.50 

65.28 61.85 

TOTAL 632.60 633.93 

27.1 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS IN RESPECT OF ?inLakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Raw materials 51.99 102.28 

27.2 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS 

(Excluding GST) TinLakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Audit fees and limited review fees 1.37 1.37 

TaxAuditfees 0.71 071 

Certification charges 0.13 0.07 

Qutof pocket expenses 0.02 0.14 

TOTAL 2,23 229 
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28. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share Tin Lakhs 

Particulars Forthe yearended Forthe yearended 
31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Net Profit/(loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss attributable to 

equity shareholders (Tin Lakhs) (210.24) (47.35) 

Weighted average numbers of equity shares used as denominator for calculating 

EPS 99,74,600 76,74,600 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (2.11) (0.62) 

Face value per equity shares 10 10 

29. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY Zin Lakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Purchases of raw material 5127 102.32 
30. EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE Tin Lakhs 

Particulars Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

FOB value of exports 115.76 187.56 

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

As per the Ind Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 "Related Party", the disclosures of transactions with related parties are 
given below 

(I) List of the related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transaction have taken place and 

relationships 

Name of the Related Parties Relationship 

Mr.Abhay R Shah Key Management Personal 

Mr. Ajay R Shah Key Management Personal 

Ms. Ashwini Lad (Upto 30th May,2024) Key Management Personal 

Mr. Shudhir R Shah Key Management Personal 

Arati Shah & Associates (Ms Aarti Shah) Relative of Key Management Personal 

Mr. Dipakkumar K Kanbar Key Management Personal 

Mr. Ashwinkumar H. Raval Key Management Personal 

Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni (w.e.f23rd May, 2024) Key Management Persanal 

Mr. Rajnikant K Shah Relative of Key Management Personal 
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(1) Transactions during the year with related parties TinLakhs 

Nature of the transaction Fortheyearended Forthe yearended 

31" March, 2025 31"March, 2024 

(a) Remuneration to key management personnel 

Mr. Abhay R Shah 29.00 23.10 
Mr. Ajay R Shah 18.53 14.08 
Mr. Shudhir R Shah 5.40 469 

(b) Professional Fees 

Mr Rajnikant K Shah 4.20 4.20 

Arati Shah & Associates (Ms Aarti Shah) 1.53 0.23 

(c) Sitting Fees 

Ms. Ashwini Lad 0.15 0.60 

Mr. Dipakkumar K Kanbar 0.95 0.60 

Mr. Ashwinkumar H. Raval 1.45 0.60 

Mrs. Chitkala U. Kulkarni 1.45 - 

(1) Balances outstanding TinLakhs 

Particulars Asat Asat 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Unsecured Loans 

Mr. Abhay R Shah 16.52 0.45 

Mr. Ajay R Shah - 13.35 

Professional Fees Payable 

Mr. Rajnikant K Shah 0.22 B 

Remuneration to Key Management Personal Payable 

Mr. Abhay R Shah 1.36 1.14 

Mr. Ajay R Shah 0.79 0.82 

32. The Company does not have different segments and hence segment wise reporiing in terms of the Ind 

Accounting standard (Ind AS) 108 "Operating Segment' is not applicable, The Company mainly deals printing 
inks and auxiliaries which is considered as a one segment only. Geographical segment is not material and 

hence not required to be disclosed separately. 
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33. Dues to Micro & Small Enterprises 

Under the Micro and Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED) which came into force 
from 2nd October 2006 certain disclosures in terms of section 22 are required to be made relaling to Micro and 

Small Enterprises the following information is compiled on the basis of the information and records available 
with the management. 

ZinLakhs 

Forthe yearended Forthe yearended Particulars 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2023 

Principal amount remaining unpaid as at the year end 

Interest due thereon 

Amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the 

MSMED along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 

beyond the appointed day during the accounting year 

Amount ofinterest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during 

the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED 

Act 20086. 

Amountof Interest Accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 

Accounting year 

51.71 

1.14 

1.14 

27.75 

0.69 

0.69 

34, DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / ASSETS (NET) finlLakhs 

Particulars As at 

31" March, 2025 

Asat 

31"March, 2024 

Deferred tax liability 

Related to Depreciation difference of fixed assets 80.76 88.87 

Deferred tax asset 

Disallowances and Unabsorbed Business Loss and Depreciation under 

the Income Tax 1961 (314.61) (291.40) 

Deferred tax liability/(asset) (net) (233.85) (202.63) 

34.1. In terms of Ind Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 12- "Income Taxes", the Company has Deferred Tax Assets as on 31st 

March 2025, In terms of the said Standard, in view of unabsorbed depreciation and unabsorbed business losses under 

the lax laws, net result of computation is net deferred tax assels. Hence, the management has decided not to incorporate 

the same In the books of accounts as a matter of prudence and in absence of virtual certainty as to its realization. 

35. Subject to Note No. 36 on Trade Receivables, in the opinion of the management, current and non current assets are 

recoverable in normal course of the Business. 

36 Doubtful Trade receivables include: TinLakhs 

Particulars As at As at 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

Debts doubtful of recovery 

Trade receivables for which suits have been filed for recovery 41.88 41.88 

Other Trade receivable where suits have not been filed 55.74 48.02 

37. The provisions of the section 135 in respect of corporate social responsibility are not applicable to the company as the 

company is not falling under any criteria of the said provisions.
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS Tin Lakhs 

Particulars Asat As at 

31" March, 2025 31" March, 2024 

() Contingent Liabilities 

-Bank Guarantee Nil Nil 

- Third party guarantee in favour of customer Nil Nil 

{Il) Commitments 

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

accountand not provided for 

- Tangible Assets Nil Nil 

-Intangible Assets Nil Nil 

(b) Other Cammitments Nil Nil 

39. SOCIAL SECURITY CODE 

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 ('the Code') which, inter alia, deals with employee 
benefits during employment and post employment. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. The effective 
date of the Code is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of 

this, the impact of the change, if any. will be assessed and recognized post notification of the relevant provisions. 

40. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule lil to the Companies Act, 2013 

()  The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are 

pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 

(45 of 1988) and the Rules made thereunder. 

(i) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or 

government or any government authority. 

(i) There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax 

Act, 1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

(iv) TheCompany has nottraded orinvested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year. 

(v} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of 
Companies beyond the statutory period. 

(vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons/entities identified in any other manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Company 
('ultimate beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding 

party")with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly orindirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party 
(ultimate beneficiaries); or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

(vili) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

{ix) The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) 

ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017. 

41. The above audited financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of 

Directors of the Company at the meetings held on 30th May, 2025, 

42, Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's 

classification / disclosure.
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43. Financial risk management 

The Company's aclivities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest risk), credit 

risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall financial risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. 

i. Market Risk 

Market rate is the risk that arises from changes in market prices, such as commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, 

interest rates etc. and will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 

objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, 

while optimising returns. 

a. Commodity Price Risk 

Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuations in prices of raw materials and other products. The company 
has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in 

commuodity prices and fright costs. 

b. InterestRate Risk 

The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates to the floating the debt 
obligations. 

c.  Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk 

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the Statement of Profit & Loss, 

where transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in currency other 

than functional currency of the entity. Considering the countries and economic development in which Company 

operates, its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risk 

primarily relates to fluctuations in US Dollar. 

Any movement in the functional currency of operations of the Company against the major foreign currency may 

impact the Company’'s revenue in international business. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact 

Company's cost ofimports and cansequently the profit or loss. 

The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange 

raterisk. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss to the 

Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of 
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of its counterparties' financial conditions. The Company's major 

classes of financial assets are cash and bank balances, trade receivables, Security deposits, Advances to Suppliers 

and Employees and prepayments. 

As at the reporling date, the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of 

each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position. 

As at the reporting date, subslantially all the cash and bank balances as detailed in Note 8 to the financial 

information are held in major Banks which are regulated and located in the India, which management believes are of 

high credit quality. The management does not expect any losses arising from non-performance by these 

counterparties. 

Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk arises from the Company’'s management of working capital. It is the risk that the Company will 

encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. 

The Company has obtained fund based and non-fund based working capital credit facility from a bank. Company's 

policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due. The 

principal liabilities of the Company arise in respect of the trade and other payables. Trade and other payables are all 

payable within 12 months. 

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate surplus, banking facilities and reserve borrowing 

facilities by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows. 

The Company has a system of regularly forecasting cash inflows and outflows and all liquidity requirements are 
planned. 

Forecastfor trade and other payables is regularly monitored to ensure timely funding. 

All payments are made within due dates subject to availability of funds. 

Capital Risk Management 

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able fo maintain an optimal capital structure 
so asto supportits businesses. 63
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Note 45- Ratios 

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current | Privous | % of Explanation* 

year year |increase/ 
decease 

Currentratio (intimes) Total current assets Total current liabilities 0.89 0.83 6.97%) 

Debt-Equity ratio (intimes) [De bt consists ofTotalequity 235  9.10| -74.22%| 0@ §acrease is due 
o decrease in 

I:Iior_rp.wlngs and lease borrowings and 

liabilities increase in equity for 
the current year. 

Debt service coverage|Earning for Debt Service =|Debt service=Interest|  (0.03) 0.71| -104.12%| The decrease is due 
ratio (in times) Net Profit after taxes +and lease payments + to decrease in 

Non-cash operating|Principalrepayments borrow[ngs Iand 

expenses+interest + Other lgc":“f‘; '? equity for 
non-cash adjustments QL yoar. 

Return on equity ralio|Profit for the year less|Average total equity -94% |  -33%| 184.88% The increase is due 
(in %) Preference dividend ({if toincrease in cureent 

year loss but 
any) increase in total 

equity because of 
preferential allotment 

Trade receivables turn|Revenuefromoperations |Average trade 5.16 427 20.80% 
over ratio (in times) receivables 

Trade payables turnover|Cost of Materials Tradedlaverage trade 
ratio (in times) {Cost of Serv!cespayabges 4.63 4.29| T7.88% 

Rendered + Other 
expenses 

h_lflf capital turnover ratio|Revenue from operations |Average working -18.84)| -16.97| 11.00% 

{intimes) capital (i.e. Total 
current assels less 

Total currentliabilities) 

Net profil ratio (in %) Profitfor the year Revenue from  -7%) -2%| 311.50%]| The increase is due 
operations to increase in loss for 

the current year 

Return on capitallProfit before tax and|Capital employed = -29% B2% | -135.18%| The decrease is due 
employed (in %) finance costs Net worth + Lease :fi;"g[‘e::fit ";‘;;%?sgfi; 

liabilities + Deferred Increase [n lotal 
tax liabilities equity because of 

preferential 
allotment 

Return on investmentincome generated from/Average invested 0% 0% - 
(in %) invested funds funds in investments 

* explanation Is provided for any change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As perour Report of even date 

For Soman Uday & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 
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Abhay R Shah 

Managing Director 
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Sudhir R Shah 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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May 30,2025 
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Whole Time Director and CFO 
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